
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

    TOWN OF PAONIA 

     TUESDAY, JULY 09, 2019 

WORK SESSION – 5:00 PM SHORT TERM RENTALS 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Work Session Roll Call 
 

Short Term-Rentals  

Work Session Adjournment 
 

Regular Meeting Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 

 1. Linda Little dba 3
rd

 Street Bistro – Annual Liquor License Renewal 

     Ute Trails Car Club – Colorado Grand – Large Park Event – September 10, 2019 

Mayor’s Report 

Staff Reports 
2. Administrator’s Report 

3. Public Works Report 

4. Police Report 

5. Treasurer’s Report 

Disbursements 
6. Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
7. Ordinance 2019-TBD – Business Registration 

8. Employee Health Plan Renewal 

New Business 
9. Smith – 215 Delta Avenue – Roof Height Variance 

11. South Clark Avenue Subdivision  

12. Ordinance 2019 – TBD – Home Occupation Application Process 

13. Stahl Addition - Acceptance of Annexation Petition 

14. Resolution 2019-11 Initiating Annexation Proceedings 

15. AARP – Memorandum of Understanding 

16. CHC – Colorado Oil & Gas Conservation Commission – Rulemaking 

17. CHC – Bureau of Land Management – Revised Master Plan 
18. Thomas Markle – Amend Zoning to Account for Formula Business 

Committee Reports 
19. Finance & Personnel 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

20. Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

21. Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

22. Space to Create 

23. Tree Board 

 

Adjournment 
 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

Short-Term Rentals – Work Session 

Summary:   

Continued Board discussion and work session regarding the regulation of short-term rentals. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



What is a Short Term Rental (STR) ?
A short-term rental, or vacation rental, is the renting out of a furnished 

home, apartment or condominium for a short-term stay. The owner of the 

property usually will rent out on a weekly basis, but some 

vacation rentals offer nightly rates. (google.com)

Other jurisdictions definition of STRs contain the following elements:

• Rented for a period that ranges between 5 and 60 days (short-term)

• Renting of residential structure, with or without provision of meals

• Rental can be entire dwelling unit, individual room, or portions of rooms

• Must be privately owned and excludes ADUs, B and Bs, Inns, hotels etc…

• Can be considered a lodging accommodation 

6



Why are we looking at STR Reg’s?

Pros - Values and Benefits of STRs:

• Support the tourism economy by providing 

lodging for visitors

• Generate property management jobs in 

the community

• Provide an opportunity for residents to 

make extra income to afford the cost of 

living

• Important source of Revenue for the City

Cons - Issues Associated with STRs:

• Neighborhood impacts of allowing a commercial 

lodging use in residential areas – not compatible 

with residential character of the neighborhood; 

generate traffic, parking issues, noise, trash 

issues

• Impacts on housing supply and housing costs 

o Loss of housing supply for long term occupancy

o Increase in investment properties used as STRs

o Drive up homes prices in the community

• Inequality within the lodging sector.  STRs are 

not on a level playing field with other commercial 

lodging uses (i.e., bed & breakfasts, hotels) and have 

unfair advantages over other lodging properties.

• Life safety concerns for STR guests – smoke and

carbon monoxide detectors, access, fire separation,

egress

To balance the Pro’s and Con’s in an effort to  preserve Community Character

7



Short-Term History of 

Listing Sites

8



Preliminary Data

9



Leadville – A Growth Market

10



STR’s July 19, 2018-119 units (and this ain’t the MTB100)

11



12



13



$470,425.00

14



City Zoning Permit Sales Tax
Lodging 

Tax

Local Business

License Req’d

Safety 

Inspection 

Req’d

Post 

license 

on 

Listing

Public 

Notice
Education Fees

Summit Jurisdictions

Summit County X none

Breckenridge X X X $75-$175

Frisco X X X $75

Silverthorne X X X $75/year

Dillon X X X $60/year

Blue River X X X
$200 the first year $75 

every year after

Montezuma X

Other Jurisdictions in Colorado

Grand County CO X X X X X $200

Aspen X X X X X $150+

Durango X X X X X X X X $750+

Ouray County CO X X X X $300 / $150 renewal

Georgetown** X X X X X X X

$75-$180  for license

$500 for first permit

$250 annual renewal

Crested Butte** X X X X X X $1500/$750 renewal

Estes Park** X X X X X
X $200 base/ 

$50 per bedroom

Minturn** X X X X X $300

Salida** X X X X X
Self-

Inspection
X $50 / $25 renewal

All Colorado Short Term Rentals are required to obtain a State Sales Tax account number and license. 

** Limitations on numbers of STRs (once a limit is met, no new STRs will be allowed)

• Minturn has a limit that no more than 10% or 50, whichever is fewer, of the residential housing units shall be licensed as STRs in the town at any time.  

• Georgetown has a limitation on number of short term rentals in each Ward of the Town. Each of the three wards shall have no more than 7%.  Once the limit is reached, no more 

permits shall be issued in the ward.  (Limitations do not apply to rental properties which are occupied year-round by the owner).

• Salida has a maximum number of STRs in Residential zones to not exceed 3.5 percent of the total number of dwelling units eligible as STRs

• Crested Butte limits the number of vacation rentals to 30% of the total free market residential units

• Estes Park capped registrations in residential zoning districts at 588

15



Define Goals of a 

STR Regulatory Program

Common Goals of a STR Regulatory Program

• Balance the needs of guests with the needs of the local 

community.

• Mitigate neighborhood impacts to preserve quality of life –

traffic, parking, noise, trash, neighborhood character.

• Level the playing field with other commercial lodging 

businesses (bed & breakfasts, hotels).

• Ensure proper regulation and inspection of life safety 

items.

• Mitigate the impacts on the supply of long term housing, to 

maintain a year-round community.

What do we want to accomplish with a Short Term Rental Regulation Policy?

16



Short-term Rental 1 (STR 1) means either: 
1. An owner-occupied dwelling unit in which not more than two bedrooms are rented or 

offered for rent to one person or one family for periods of less than thirty (30) days, or 
2. A dwelling unit in a two-family or multiple family structure in which one unit is occupied by 

the owner of the entire structure that is rented or offered for rent by one person or one 
family for periods of less than thirty (30) days. An STR 1 dwelling unit or units shall have no 
more than two (2) bed rooms rented at any given time. 

 
Short-term Rental 2 (STR-2) means either: 
1. A dwelling unit that is not occupied by its owner that is rented or offered for rent to one 

person or one family for periods of less than 30 days, or 
2. One dwelling unit in a non-owner occupied two-family or multiple-family structure rented 

or offered for rent to one person or one family for periods of less than 30 days.  
3. A dwelling unit in a two-family or multiple family structure in which one unit is occupied by 

the owner of the entire structure that is rented or offered for rent by one person or one 
family for periods of less than thirty (30) days. An STR 2 and 3 dwelling unit or units shall 
have no more than two (2) bed rooms rented at any given time.  
 

Short-term Rental 3 (STR-3) means either: 
1. One or more dwelling units in a multiple-family or mixed use/commercial structure that is 

rented or offered for rent to one person or one family for periods of less than 30 days.  

Highlights for Feedback

17



Highlights for Feedback

License Required 

 
A person shall not operate a short-term rental without a short-term rental license. To operate a 

short-term rental, the owner of the short-term rental property must file an application with the City 

Administrative Services Manager or designee. Effective February 1, 2019, no person shall operate a 

short-term rental without first obtaining a permit from the office of the City Administrative Services 

Manager.  

 

Two-year ownership. No property shall be licensed as a Short -Term Rental unless the owner has 

owned the property for two (2) or more years consecutively before a license application is filed. 

Transfers to a trust where the owner of the property is the beneficiary of the trust or to a 

corporate entity where the owner of the property is the majority owner of the entity shall not 

constitute a break in the period of ownership. This section shall not be read to prohibit the long-

term rental of properties (for periods in excess of thirty (30) days) within the first two years of 

ownership. The short-term rental license is non -transferable with the sale of the property. 

18



Highlights for Feedback

Duration of permits and license required 

 

STR-1 permits shall expire after three (3) years from the date of issuance.  STR-1 permits in good 

standing may be renewed thereafter on or before the expiration date. Expired permits shall not be 

renewed after the expirations date and shall require a new application and review, including all 

submittal requirements and fees, as required by this Code. 

 

STR-2 and STR-3 permits shall expire after one (1) year from the date of issuance. STR-2 and STR-3 

permits in good standing may be renewed thereafter on or before the expiration date. Expired 

permits shall not be renewed after the expiration date and shall require a new application and 

review, including all submittal requirements and fees, as required by this Code. 

19



Highlights for Feedback
Local Agent Required 
 
Each owner of a short-term vacation rental property shall designate a local agent whose physical address 
of residence is within Lake County or within 30 miles driving distance of the short-term vacation rental 
property’s street address to serve as the local agent.  An owner of a short-term rental property may 
designate himself/herself as the agent, as long as their physical address of primary residence is within the 
City of Leadville or within 30 miles driving distance of the short-term rental property’s street address.   
 
The local agent shall have access and authority to assume management of the unit and take remedial 
measures.  The agent shall be available 24 hours per day, 7 days per week to respond to tenant and 
neighborhood questions or concerns.   
 
The owner shall notify the City of Leadville in writing of any modification to the local agent appointment 
within five (5) days of any such modification.   
 
An acknowledgment that the short-term rental property owner, local agent, or agent of the owner, if 
any, have read all regulations, including, but not limited to, the standards set forth in this Code 
pertaining to the operation of a short-term rental. 
 
The short-term rental property owner shall sign and certify the accuracy of the information submitted 
and agree to comply with all regulations. If there is a local or other agent of the owner managing the short-
term rental, the other agent or an authorized officer of the local agent, or both, shall also sign and 
certify the accuracy of the information submitted and agree to comply with all regulations. 

20



Highlights for Feedback

Fee 

 

Except as provided herein, the initial licensing fee for a STR-1 shall be $150.00 and the initial licensing 

fee for STR-2 and STR-3 shall be $350.00 .  

 

The 3-year renewal fee for a STR-1 shall be $150.00 and the annual renewal fee for STR-2 and STR-3 

shall be $350.00 to offset the cost to the City of Leadville to process, administer, and monitor the 

operation of short-term rentals.  

  

For any person found to be operating a short-term rental without registering or possessing a valid 

license the initial license fee shall be triple the required fee. Additional penalties may apply as designated 

by Chapter 1.20 – General penalty of the Leadville, Colorado Municipal Code 

Duration of permits and license required 

 

STR-1 permits shall expire after three (3) years from the date of issuance.  STR-1 permits in good 

standing may be renewed thereafter on or before the expiration date. Expired permits shall not be 

renewed after the expirations date and shall require a new application and review, including all 

submittal requirements and fees, as required by this Code. 

 

STR-2 and STR-3 permits shall expire after one (1) year from the date of issuance. STR-2 and STR-3 

permits in good standing may be renewed thereafter on or before the expiration date. Expired 

permits shall not be renewed after the expiration date and shall require a new application and 

review, including all submittal requirements and fees, as required by this Code. 

21



Highlights for Feedback

• Community Character

• Occupancy

• Parking

• Noise

• Other???

22



23



24



Preliminary Data

25



A GUIDE TO  

SMART AIRBNB

REGULATION  

FOR LOCAL

GOVERNMENTS

26



Table of Contents

1. Research 

 

 

 

2. Framing the Issue 

 

 

3. Defining Planning Objectives 

 

 

4. Ordinance Drafting 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Incorporate Feedback into AirBnB  

Regulation

Local Context 
Qualitative Data 
Policy Research 
Enforcement Capabilities 

Stakeholder Analysis 
Messaging 

Context and Values 
Enforcement Capabilities 

STR Definition 
Land Use and Zoning 
Unit Characteristics 
Host Operation 
Guest Requirements 
Permitting Process 
Enforcement Process 

3

18

11

9

8

27



With the rise of AirBnB and other online rental platforms, AirBnB 
regulation has become an evolving and complex area for local 
governments. While some may think it’s only an issue in larger cities or 
tourist destinations, there are over 2,700 U.S. cities and counties with 
more than 50 short-term rental (STR) listings.* 
 
It’s a divisive issue for many communities, with clear arguments for both 
the benefits and costs of allowing more STRs. While some celebrate the 
additional income for residents and a boon to the local economy, others 
fear the degradation of their neighborhoods and lack of affordable 
housing. 
 
Local government responses have ranged from no regulation to 
completely banning STRs. However, most communities have not yet 
figured out the best way to approach the issue. In a survey of 800 local 
government officials, only a quarter had rules in place, 53% stated having 
no rules, 16% were actively adopting new rules, and 6% were unsure. 

Source: Jeffrey B. Goodman and Host Compliance, Survey of Local Governments presented in 
“Webinar: The Best Practice Guide to Crafting a Short-Term Rental Ordinance/Bylaw” 

128



It’s a delicate issue that involves balancing the interests and well-being of 
diverse stakeholders. However, there are experts actively studying the 
issue, and they provide research and best practices to help guide the way 
to smarter AirBnB regulation. 
 
The company iCompass recently hosted a webinar on this topic, featuring 
Jeffrey B. Goodman and the company Host Compass, among the nation’s 
leading authorities on short-term rental regulation. Goodman has 
overseen national research studies on the topic, and consulted for AirBnB
as well as cities and towns nationwide. Host Compass has also worked 
with local government partners nationwide, helping them find solutions 
to research, draft, and enforce short-term rental regulations. 
 
Through collaborative research on local government ordinances around 
the country, Goodman and Host Compliance developed best practices for 
dealing with common concerns and planning objectives, and a 
standardized process for drafting effective regulation. 

Ulrik Binzer is the Founder & CEO of Host 
Compliance, a company that helps local 
governments cost-effectively research, draft 
and enforce short-term rental regulations. 

Jeffrey Goodman is a designer, researcher, 
programmer, and planner based in New 
Orleans. His work focuses on the sharing 
economy, community participation, and 
data-driven regulation. 

229



Here is a summary of their advice for local governments looking to 
develop and implement effective AirBnB regulation (used here 
interchangeably with “short-term rental regulation”). 

*All cited statistics taken from Host Compliance and Jeffrey B. Goodman‘s presentation in: 
“Webinar: The Best Practice Guide to Crafting a Short-Term Rental Ordinance/Bylaw. Hosted by: iCompass 

Before making decisions, you need to understand the context for your regulation. While 
easy to overlook, comprehensive research will be the foundation for successful AirBnB 
regulation. 

Local Context
Begin the research process by getting a sense of the short-term rental market in your 
area. Here are questions to consider while conducting this research: 

How many listings are there in your community? 
Where are current listings located? Where are the areas of concentration, if any?
Where are the most bookings happening? 
What type, size, and occupancy levels of housing are offered? 
What are the range and average listing prices? 

Map of current AirBnB listings in Seattle 

330



The website insideairbnb.com is a helpful resource for up-to-date data on current listings
in larger cities. Smaller communities can gather data directly from airbnb.com and other 
online rental platforms. 
 
It’s also important to look at the local context indirectly related to AirBnB regulation. 

What is the picture of housing availability and affordability in your community? 
What are the other existing lodging options? 
How are socioeconomic demographics spread throughout the city? 

Once you have a landscape of the STR market and pertinent local factors, you can start 
diving into other research areas. 

Qualitative Data 
As any local government official knows, research gets more complicated when you start 
gathering data from local stakeholders. Creating effective policy for a controversial issue 
like short-term rentals means managing this complexity, and ultimately coming out with 
a better understanding of your community’s values. Start by identifying the stakeholders:

Who is concerned about the issue? 
Who might not know what’s going on, but be inadvertently affected? 
What are their motivations? What are their fears? 

Public comment forums will help get a pulse on residents’ opinions. But Goodman 
emphasizes framing the issue around planning objectives. When you make STRs a yes or
no issue—are you for or against them?—it’s too easy for stakeholders to hold opinions 
without considering compromise or community goals. 

431



Town hall meeting in Rexburg, Idaho is packed with community members ready to discuss Airbnb issues 
Source: Natalia Hepworth, EastIdahoNews.com, Sept. 2016 

After you’ve identified relevant stakeholders, get a baseline on each group’s motivations 
and fears. How are they currently affected by STRs? What are they most concerned about
—housing availability, neighborhood preservation, economic development? 
 
Discussions will evolve throughout the regulation process, so initial conversations do not 
need to cover every concern. You will return to do a deeper stakeholder analysis after 
the initial research phase. 

Policy Research 
Do your due diligence on existing STR, B&B, and motel laws in your municipality. It’s likely
that at least some of the laws are outdated, and you’d be surprised at what you might 
find. According to Goodman, one city had banned B&B’s from serving breakfast due to 
the influence of a “brunch lobby”. 
 
Look at the state level as well. There are currently 10-15 states that regulate hotels 
and/or STRs. This changes the value for cities looking to invest in creating and enforcing 
new policies. If the money collected from fees and permits goes back to the state, it 
might not be worth the investment at a local level. Additionally, some states have said 
municipalities cannot regulate STRs based on certain criteria (e.g. length of stay), and 
many states are changing laws rapidly, so keep up-to-date. 

532



Amsterdam, one of AirBnB’s closest partners, is currently discussing major reforms to their short-term 
rental regulations, trying to balance tourism and housing availability for residents. 

Lastly, in doing policy research, look beyond your local neighbors and your state. How 
are communities of similar size (or other important factors) around the country and 
around the world effectively addressing AirBnB regulation? 

Enforcement Capabilities 
Your policies will largely be shaped by what you can enforce. Take this into account early
in the process, before you start publicly proposing things you don’t have the capacity to 
enforce. Consider these questions: 

What types of regulations do we have the ability to enforce with our current 
resources? 
What are we willing to spend on new resources? 
What kind of regulatory environment do we want to impose on our community? 
What is the input from those who would be responsible for enforcing new laws? 

633



Members of HomeSharersSF, holding a rally at City Hall in San Francisco before vote on AirBnB regulation. 

Are you thinking of requiring every rental unit to get an inspection with only one part- 
time inspector on staff? Is the police department willing to enforce a policy prohibiting 
excessive noise after a certain hour? 
 
Access to data can also limit certain types of regulation. For example, San Francisco has 
outlawed STRs being rented more than 90 days of the year. This type of policy would be 
hard to enforce without reliable access to booking data. 

On top of your government’s enforcement capabilities, consider what kind of 
environment you want to create in your community. How will residents feel if the police 
begin making extra rounds in residential areas? Will additional inspections be invasive to
surrounding residents? Considering these scenarios will help you know what kinds of 
regulation options are realistic to bring to the table. 

734



Framing the issue for productive discussion is key to managing diverse opinions and 
producing successful compromises. 

Stakeholder Analysis 
Public opinion matters, but so does the input of elected officials, relevant government 
departments, and local businesses. Think about which government 
departments/responsibilities will be affected by new regulations (e.g. code enforcement, 
planning and zoning, permitting and licensing, finance, tax collection, police department,
etc.). Here are some basic questions to get you started: 

How will an increase in STRs affect each government department? 
Will any departments need new resources? Can the cost of new resources be covered 
by estimated increases in permitting and licensing fees? 
How many residents are actively concerned about the issue? Where do their fears and
motivations overlap? 
Which businesses are for and against more STRs? How would an increase or decrease 
affect them? 
Where are areas of centralized commerce, entertainment, and tourism? How do we 
want STRs to affect their development? 

Once you can map out the motivations, fears, and priorities for each interest group, you 
can move forward with the process. Understanding how policy changes may affect 
stakeholders and anticipating their reactions will help you judge the externalities of new 
regulation. More importantly, community voices will inform which planning objectives 
you choose to prioritize with AirBnB regulation. 

Messaging
A stakeholder analysis will also help you come up with effective messaging, so people 
aren’t surprised by new policy proposals. Remember to frame the issue beyond a simple
yes or no. 

835



Most communities will not impose full bans nor leave STRs unregulated, there will likely 
be a solution somewhere in between. Making sure stakeholders know they must be 
open to compromise will make discussion more productive. Here are some foundational
questions to help frame the issue: 

What problems are STRs actively causing in our community? 
What do we love and want to preserve about our community? 
How can STRs help us support our goals? 
How can policies address these issues and support these goals? 

Goodman suggests allowing anecdotes in public comment, but to remain aware of 
biases. Most importantly, look for underlying patterns and the root causes of 
stakeholders’ concerns. 

Context and Values 
Community context and values will vary. For some, housing availability is a main concern,
while for others it may be neighborhood preservation and safety. It’s important to 
communicate clearly about how you came to prioritize certain planning objectives, 
avoiding confusion and frustration with the process moving forward. 
 
The table below shows a list of common STR policy objectives and corresponding 
regulation tactics. 

Some people will never compromise, and you must move past those voices to produce 
viable policies. The result of research and stakeholder analysis is a clear set of priorities 
to inform your planning objectives and therein your policy tactics. 

936



Best Practices for Addressing 
Common Planning Objectives 

Common STR

Policy Objectives  
Best Regulatory Practices 

Housing Availability - Only allow permanent residents to operate STRs  
- Disallow rentals in subsidized housing 

Neighborhood
Preservation  

- Set neighborhood quotas 
- Ban signs 

Protecting Quality
of Life  

- Require adequate parking and garbage disposal  
- Require hosts to post noise ordinance  
- Require a local contact person 

Economic
Development  

- Encourage hosting in certain areas and time
frames 

Safety - Require physical safety and habitability
inspections 

These best practices were developed from Goodman's and Host Compliance's research 
on STR regulations in municipalities across the country. They are a good starting point, 
but no one knows the unique context of your community like you do. Don’t be afraid to 
brainstorm creative policies that might work better in your area. 

1037



Use local context and community values to decide on planning objectives, and then 
check corresponding policy measures against enforcement capabilities. This will give you
a tailored, realistic set of policy measures specific to your community. 

Once you’ve done the research and prep work, it’s time to dig into the details. Planning 
discussions might happen in broader strokes, while ordinance drafting requires final 
decisions and precise language. This is a good time to refer back to the laws already on 
the books, as well as example AirBnB policies from other municipalities you’ve gathered 
in your research. 

STR Definition 
You will need to specifically define short-term rentals beyond a “unit rented for less than
30 or 14 days.” In addition to length of stays, the definition should speak to: 

Who is allowed to host (this can have significant implications for planning objectives)?
- Owners, renters, management companies, etc. 
 
What types of units are allowed to be STRs (consider safety implications)? 
- Homes, bedrooms, accessory units, yards, etc. 
 
What type of insurance is required for a STR property (this is to protect both the 
municipality and host)? 

Enforcement Capabilities 
Remember that the ability to enforce a policy is the litmus test for what is realistic. 
Always ask yourself: 

Can you enforce it legally and physically? 
Would it cause undue burden on the government’s resources? 

1138



AirBnB listings range from full houses to “camping in the backyard.” 

Land use and zoning 

Effective AirBnB regulation is grounded in a clear definition. You want to avoid future 
questions in the enforcement process over whether something qualifies as a STR. If you 
are going to change your existing definition, take into account how current rental 
operations might change in status (e.g. will AirBnB listings be subject to the same 
regulations as traditional B&Bs?). 

Use your STR land use and zoning policies to target your top planning objectives, like 
housing availability or economic development. For instance, if you want to preserve long-
term housing options in certain areas, you can control density levels (i.e. only so many 
listings allowed in this area) or create buffers around units (i.e. no units within x distance 
of each other). Neighborhoods with a tight rental market may require harsher controls. 
 
You also need to consider how to balance traditional lodging options with STRs. 

1239



Unit Characteristics 

Should STRs populate the same areas as traditional lodging options? How will this 
affect businesses in those areas? 
How “commercial” does an STR have to be to reside in a commercial zone? Should 
STRs be allowed in residential areas? 
Should different types of STRs be zoned differently? 

Prioritizing certain objectives means accepting tradeoffs. Ashland, Oregon prioritized 
neighborhood preservation in their AirBnB regulation, so they decided to keep all STRs 
near busy streets to avoid bothering residents. This might have the added effect of 
boosting the economy for local businesses, however it also precludes many homeowners
from being able to earn extra income through online rental platforms. 

Requiring units to have certain characteristics is not necessary, but it can help divert 
unwanted behaviors. Imposing bedroom/occupancy limits and providing adequate trash 
and parking can help prevent large groups and parties from disturbing neighbors. 
Building, safety, and ADA codes help ensure listings are in legal compliance and in 
accordance with insurance policies. Remember that including specific unit characteristics
will require additional inspections. 

A three-bedroom apartment in Portland, Oregon listed on AirBnB for $400/night. 
 

1340



Host Operation 

Permit fees can also help create the right balance of supply and demand for different 
types of units. Portland, Oregon requires different permits for rentals depending on the 
number of bedrooms (above 3 bedrooms is $3,000, and units with more than 5 
bedrooms are not allowed). Scaling permit fees also helps the city collect revenue 
proportionate to the amount earned by hosts’ listing prices. 

Some communities impose host operation regulations to keep hosts accountable and to
keep neighbors apprised of STRs in their area. Examples of this include: 

Requiring hosts to notify neighbors and allow a certain time period for neighbor input
before booking a listing 
Requiring a host contact person to be available in case of emergency 

Requiring a host contact person might affect who and how hosts are able to operate 
their STRs. If the contact has to be within a specific range of the listing, it might prevent 
homeowners from renting their houses while on vacation. Alternatively, the policy might
specify that the host contact could be someone other than the property owner (e.g. a 
relative, or property manager), allowing hosts more flexibility. 

Guest Requirements 
Many communities also include guest requirements in AirBnB regulation, especially in 
residential areas. Common areas to address include: 

Noise limits 
Pools & Spas (time restrictions for usage) 
Traffic limits 
Guest registration 

Guests may also need to know community-specific information. For example, in one 
small Florida beach town, leaving the lights on at night is confusing for baby sea turtles 
looking for the ocean. 

1441



Permitting Process 

One Florida beach town must advise guests about leaving the lights on at night, which 
can confuse baby sea turtles looking for the ocean. 

Permitting is one of your most powerful tools in implementing effective AirBnB 
regulation and collecting revenue for your government. If you do not currently require 
permits or licenses for STRs, writing this part of your policy will probably be the most 
time-consuming. Incorporate feedback from government departments that will be 
involved in the permitting process, and remain realistic about your processing 
capabilities. 
 

While this is a rare example, many communities will have unique considerations for new
guests. 

1542



Always consider the capacities of your permit office and staff before including permit 
requirements that will inundate them with more applications than they can handle. 
 
Maybe some use types will require permits, while others will be exempt or have lower 
fees. For example, listings with bookings over a certain number of days per year may 
require a license, while occasional hosts only need a permit. 
 
Some communities may decide to affect supply and demand by distributing a limited 
amount of STR permits. If you take this route, consider which types and listing locations 
will be willing to pay higher permitting and licensing fees. Always remember to refer back
to your planning objectives as your guide. 
 

Enforcement Process 

Will STR rentals require a permit, license, or both? 
What are the main categories of STRs in your community (e.g. single homeowners, 
commercial properties, full-time vs. part-time listings)? Will these require different 
permits or licenses? 
Do you want to affect the supply and demand for STRs in the area? Is permitting the 
appropriate way to accomplish this goal? 
What is the range of listing prices, and how does that correspond with the way current
lodging options are being taxed? Do you want to use flat or percentage fees? 
How easy are your permit applications to navigate and do you have the software to 
allow people to apply and pay online? 
Are you willing to invest in new permitting technology to increase your processing 
capacity? 

AirBnB regulation should include clear, actionable consequences to listing violations. This
might involve imposing fees and suspending or rescinding permits. Violation fees should 
be proportionate to the amount charged on average listings in the area—if hosts are 
making $1,000/night they will not be discouraged by a $50 fee. 
 
Think carefully about what consequences are appropriate for what kind of violations, 
and how consequences might affect the supply and demand of STRs in the long-term. 
See the table below for example violations and corresponding consequences. 

1643



STR Violation Examples 

Violation Consequences

2+ Noise complaints  $50 fine 

Failure to provide host contact  $75 fine 

Improper insurance policy  $200 fine 

3+ Violations  Permit suspension (6 months) 

5+ Violations  Permit revocation 

Make sure you have an accessible violation reporting process. Maybe this means 
creating a specific hotline or email address and advertising it on your website and social 
media. The ordinance—particularly violation consequences—should be clearly accessible
for all hosts and residents, so everyone knows what the rules are. Creating a digestible 
regulation guide for hosts will save you headaches down the road. 
 
There are countless contextual factors that will inform the right enforcement process for 
your community. As with all regulatory aspects, if you have having trouble deciding the 
right course of action on a topic, use your planning objectives and enforcement 
capabilities to guide you. 

1744



With any new policy, you will probably need to make adjustments as you see it play out 
in real time. Provide channels for feedback from the stakeholders in your research. 
Additionally, some community members might have been unaware of early discussions, 
but have important input now that AirBnB regulation is directly affecting them. 

Town hall meeting in San Francisco held by California State Assemblymember David Chiu
and District 3 Supervisor Aaron Peskin, to discuss AirBnB and affordable housing. 
Source: Jennie Butler, Hoodline, May 2016. 

1845



Similarly, you can guess how the influx of permit and license applications will affect your 
departments, but you won’t really know until they start coming in. Continuous lines of 
communication will help you know if you need additional resources (e.g. more staff, new
software or hardware, etc.). 
 
Advice for eliciting productive feedback: 

Remember to frame the policy around the planning objectives — avoid black and 
white stances 
Stay on topic 
Reference other comments so stakeholders understand they are compromising with 
other community members, not just the government 

Depending on local laws, your ordinance might have a built-in expiration date, but you 
may want to make changes before the sunset. Keeping a record of stakeholder feedback
and updating your research will help you reassess and make your ordinance more 
effective in addressing your community’s goals. 
 
Goodman emphasizes that there is no silver bullet to effective AirBnB regulation. Every 
community will need to assess their own local context and values before diving into this 
process. However, you are not in this alone. Use peer governments and expert research 
like Goodman’s to help guide your process. 

1946



- Community values 
- Matching planning objectives with
policy measures 

- Stakeholder analysis 
- Tailored messaging 

4. Draft the Ordinance  

3. Define Planning Objectives  

2. Frame the Issue  

- Defining STRs 
- Land use & zoning 
- Unit characteristics  
- Host operations 
- Guest requirements 
- Permitting process 
- Enforcement process 

5. Incorporate Feedback  - Provide channels 
- Keep constructive  
- Adjust regulations accordingly 

- Local STR market 
- Local context  
- Identifying stakeholders 
- Existing policies  
- Enforcement capabilities 

1. Research  

Steps to Effective Short-Term Rental 
Regulation 

By thoughtfully tackling this regulation area you are not only helping your residents 
achieve their goals as a community, but also paving the way for other governments 
looking to do the same thing. As technology and the sharing economy evolve, local 
governments will need to continue creating effective, adaptable regulation to match it. 

2047



Regulation can be difficult, we'd like to help.
At ViewPoint Cloud, we strive to provide robust but easy-to-use
software for code enforcement, permitting, and licensing. If 
you're looking to launch a program like this one, let us help 
you keep your back-office in check.  
 
 ViewPoint Cloud is the all-in-one, user-friendly software that 
helps local governments and citizens manage permits and 
licenses from intake through approval. The integrated front- 
end and back-end software streamlines payments, approvals, 
inspections, and permit issuance, all online. No more lines at 
city hall, no more shuffling papers between departments, and 
no manual data entry. ViewPoint Cloud’s simple, intuitive 
design leads the industry and makes it a breeze to implement 
the software, train employees, integrate existing data, and 
adapt to new needs. ViewPoint’s flexible pricing makes it an 
easy choice for any sized community. 

Sign up for a demonstration, today!

48



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 8, 2019 
 

 

Work Session Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

49



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

50



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

51



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

52



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

53



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 8, 2019 
 

 

Consent Agenda 

Summary:   

 

 

 

Notes: 

Linda Little dba 3
rd

 Street Bistro – Annual Liquor License Renewal 

Ute Trails Car Club – Colorado Grand September 10, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

64



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 5, 2019 
 

 

Staff Reports 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

65



 

corinne@townofpaonia.com 

 
 

From the desk of: Corinne Ferguson 

          07/01/2019 

 

Included are: 

 Copies of the March, April, and May Energy Production Reports for the solar panels 

installed at Town Hall.  

 

 After investigating the accessibility requirement of public bathroom stalls (mentioned 

to the staff and Board at a previous meeting) we found that the toilet seats were a 

violation and had them replaced.  

 

 

 I have been working with Renee and Delta County Elections to have a permanent 

ballot box installed in front of Paonia Town Hall.  This will alleviate staff time 

accepting and transferring a portable ballot box daily for 14 days prior to elections, 

and better serve voters who want to drop off their ballots instead of mailing them in.  

The last election 237 ballots were received ON election day alone. Delta County has 

approved the costs associated and plans are moving forward to have a ballot box 

installed by this November election. The Town will only be responsible for the costs 

associated with the actual installation, all other costs will be paid by Delta County.  

66



67



68



69



70



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

71



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

May 23, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

72



73



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

74



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   06/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:07:45 Information PPD PPD
13:11:47 Parking Problem

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
700 BLOCK OF 3RD St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

13:25:01 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
15:22:20 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DCSO
22:56:59 CIVIL PROBLEM

300 BLOCK OF POPLAR AVE., Paonia, CO 
Reds RD./Stephens Gulch, Paonia, CO
STAHL RD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   06/16/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:11:22 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
15:23:14 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
15:27:48 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
17:50:14 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CAA

20:36:19 Medical/transfe

Address
PAONIA AVE, Paonia, CO
PAONIA AVE, Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK CT, Paonia, CO
70 BLOCK SAMUEL WADE ROAD, Paonia, 
CO
CLARK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   06/17/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:02:12 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
16:28:40 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
19:32:17 Code Enforce

Address
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO 
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO 
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   06/18/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:46:13 Parking Problem PPD PPD
13:47:12 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
13:51:17 Code Enforce

Address
Block Grand AVE., Paonia, CO 
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO 
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   06/19/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:21:38 911/hangup PPD PPD
15:26:29 FRAUD PPD PPD
16:25:28 TAMPERING

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA

18:48:05 Traffic Stop 200 BLOCK OF ONARGA AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

75



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
19:01:09 ALARM

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   06/20/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:27:21 SUSPICIOUS

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

18:35:17 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
18:54:44 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
23:11:27 Medical/transfe

100 BLOCK OF ONARGA AVE., Paonia, CO 
400 BLOCK OF DELTA AVE., Paonia, CO 
VISTA DR;   Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/21/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:30:54 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
11:21:20 Information PPD PPD

12:58:39 ALARM PPD PPD

15:12:56 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
16:00:35 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
20:35:06 CRIM MISCHIEF PPD PPD
22:23:03 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
23:13:55 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD;  Paonia, CO 

GRAND AVE; paonia state bank, Paonia, CO

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
100 BLOCK 3RD St, Paonia, CO
PEACEFUL LN, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 8

Date Occurred:   06/22/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:49:52 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
16:07:37 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
19:21:06 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
22:56:42 Information

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO 
PEACEFUL LN, Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK 2ND STREET, Paonia, CO 
200 Block of Grand, Paonia, CO PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/23/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:18:43 Parking Problem 200 CLARK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
17:19:35 RESTR/PROT ORDR pan american, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/24/19

76



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:36:20 Information MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO          PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/25/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:24:35 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
13:09:02 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
15:57:27 Parking Problem PPD PPD CIT
16:14:53 Parking Problem PPD PPD CIT
16:32:34 Parking Problem

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
100 Block 2nd St., Paonia, CO
200 Block Grand AVE., Paonia, CO 
200 Block Grand AVE., Paonia, PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   06/26/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:42:56 Information

Address
COLORADO AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

12:56:39 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD

15:55:36 Wanted Person PPD PPD CAA
18:12:01 Medical/transfe

GRAND AVE;  Paonia, CO

200 BLOCK OF GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/27/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:23:55 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
CEDAR LN, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/28/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:00:37 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
16:30:37 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
17:00:01 Information

200 BLOCK OF ONARGA AVE., Paonia, CO 
200 BLOCK 2ND St, Paonia, CO
1625 MEADOWBROOK BLVD; Paonia, CO PPD PPD

19:35:24 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
20:28:49 Traffic Stop PPD PPD WW
23:40:10 CITIZEN ASSIST

70 BLOCK SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO 
1000 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   06/29/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
13:58:45 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
14:28:38 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
14:36:53 Medical/transfe

700 BLOCK OF 4TH St., Paonia, CO 
700 BLOCK OF 4TH St., Paonia, CO 
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

77



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 4 of 4

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 06/15/19` and `00:00:01 07/01/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
20:18:48 Medical/transfe

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/30/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:24:26 Utility Problem PPD PPD
16:33:39 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF 3RD STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

17:16:38 WELFARE CHECK 100 BLOCK GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Total reported: 63

WW=13
CIT= 11
CAA=4

78



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

79



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

Ordinance 2019-TBD – Business Registration 

Summary:   

Continued discussion regarding business licensing and/or registering.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

89



 

corinne@townofpaonia.com 

 
 

From the desk of: Corinne Ferguson 

          07/01/2019 

 

Violation notice received June 6, 2019 - for failure to meet Survey Compliance Ratio and 

Backflow Assembly Testing Compliance Ratio.  

 To cure this violation, the Town needs an accurate and an up to date list of all 

businesses within the Town limits. A list of billed commercial locations will not fill this need, 

as there are multiple businesses often located under one billing account. The Town MUST 

provide an accurate list of the type and location of businesses and track the locations that 

have proper back-flow and cross connection devices.  The business owner MUST complete 

the Town survey (provided twice in 2018) and provide documentation showing that the 

devices have been inspected annually.  

To fulfill the requirements of notice for the violation the Town spent: 

 Paper: $117.00 

 Envelopes (included postage): $820.00 

 Clerk Time: $320.00 (16 hours) 

 Deputy Clerk Time: $ 112.00 (8 hours) 

TOTAL: $1,369.00 

90



 

2 

A common topic mentioned while discussing Business licensing/registration at the June 11th 

Board meeting was the time constraints for the Town office staff to add business registering 

to the tasks.  I reached out via the Clerks list serve and received the following feedback: 

 
Fraser: “We have 424 business licenses. Like the other clerks I spend most of my time at 
renewals and very little after that. In total I’d say I spend about 40‐50 hours annually.” 
 
New Castle: “I spend probably 1-2 hours per month. Between issuing licenses and updating 
information regarding insurance and state licenses. I truly don’t spend that much time per 
month on licensing.” 
 
FoxField: “I spend perhaps 6 hours a year on this, mostly chasing the ones who don’t renew 
automatically (most do). At $50 for the first year and $35 for a renewal, this is not a revenue 
generator but it allows me to keep an updated list of businesses in the small retail center 
and their contact information.” 
 
Canon City: “Most of my time is spent in November/December/January when license 
renewal takes place (ours runs from Jan 1 to Dec 31 regardless of when they get their 
license). Otherwise, I spend maybe 2 hours a month on new licenses and questions.” 
 

 So, as you can see from other communities already performing this task, the amount 

of time is minimum.  This one violation notice took 24 hours of time, just for me and 

Amanda., I did not include Travis in my calculations because he would not have time in 

business registering.  These notices must be sent out every three months until the 

deficiency is cleared.  That equals approximately 96 hours a year and $5,476.00 out of tax 

paying dollars. 

 

 Again, I request the Board seriously consider implementing a business registry, at a 

nominal charge and minimal impact on businesses. 

91



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019__ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, ADDING CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE 5 TO THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town had determined that the levy of an annual 

business registration fee on all persons doing business in the Town will promote the health safety 

and general welfare of the Paonia community.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support 

of the enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment of Town Code.  

Chapter 6, Article 5 of the Town Code is added as follows:  

 

Sec. 6-5-1 Purpose. 

     

The purpose of this article shall be to require the registering and regulation of business 

activities, occupations and enterprises conducted within the Town and provide the Town with 

necessary information relating to businesses and professions operating within the Town in order 

to protect the health, welfare and safety of its inhabitants.  It is the express intent and purpose of 

the business registration fee to cover the cost of processing such registration.  

 

Sec. 6-5-2 Business Registration Required.   

 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, association, partnership or corporation either 

as a principal, agent, clerk, employee or otherwise to commence or carry on any kind of 

business, profession or occupation without first having registered with the Town. 

 

Sec. 6-5-3 Application for Registration. 

 

(a) Any person, firm, association, partnership or corporation now engaged in any 

business, profession or occupation within the corporate limits of the Town shall on or before 

January 1, 2020, and annually thereafter, so long as such person, firm, association, partnership 

or corporation comes within the purview of this Article 5, supply the information necessary to 

register the business with the Town Clerk.  An application for such registration shall be made 

92



 

 

to the Town Clerk and in the form provided by the Town and accompanied by the appropriate 

fee as set by resolution. 

 

(b)  Upon receipt of a complete application for business registration, the Town Clerk 

will issue a registration certificate within fifteen (15) days of receipt.   

 

Sec.  6-5-4 Buildings, Premises to Comply with Town Requirements Prior to 

Issuance of a Business Registration Certificate.  

 

The Town Clerk shall not issue a business registration certificate for the conduct of any 

business, and no permit shall be issued for anything, or act, if the premises and building to be 

used for the purpose do not fully comply with the requirements of the Town. No such business 

registration certificate or permit shall be issued for the conduct of any business or performance 

of any act which would involve a violation of the zoning provisions of the Town. 

 

Sec.  6-5-5 Exemptions. 

 

All businesses located or performed within the Town shall be subject to this business 

registration fee as levied under this Article, except as follows: 

 

(a)  Day care centers are hereby exempted from the terms of this Article. 

 

(b)  Schools are hereby exempted from the terms of this Article. 

 

(c) Nonprofit Colorado corporations are hereby exempted from the payment of a 

fee but shall be required to register. 

 

Sec. 6-5-6 Term of Registration Certificate. 

 

All registration certificates shall cover a period of one (1) year beginning January 1 and 

ending December 31 of that year.  No rebate or credit shall be given for registration certificate 

used or issued for fractions or portions of a year; nor shall such registration certificate be 

assignable or transferable as to person, but it may be transferred as to place at the discretion of 

the Town Clerk.   Business registrations shall be renewed annually during the month of 

December.  

 

Sec. 6-5-7 Notification for Renewal. 

 

The Town Clerk shall be charged with the administration and collection of all 

registration fees authorized under this Article. It shall be his or her duty to notify every known 

business, trade, occupation and professional enterprise in operation within the Town of the fact 

that such registration fee is due prior to January 1 of each year. Said notification shall include 

full instructions as to procedures for remittance of the registration fee due, and penalties 

provided. Lack of receipt of such notification in any year shall not relieve any person engaging 

in business within the Town from the liability of paying such registration fee and complying 

with all other requirements of this Article. 

93



 

 

 

Sec. 6-5-8 Delinquent Charges. 

 

Any person failing to pay any registration fee levied under this Article by January 1 

shall thereafter be deemed delinquent and the registration deemed expired. To renew their 

registration certificate, the businesses registering shall be subject to a delinquent fee in an 

amount to be approved by the Town Board of Trustees for each full month for which said fee is 

delinquent, assessed on the first day of the month, in addition to any other penalty which may 

be imposed for the violation of this Code. 

 

Sec. 6-5-9. Issuance of Registration Certificate. 

 

Upon receipt of a registration fee payment due under this Article, the Town Clerk shall 

issue a certificate which shall indicate that said registration fee has been paid for the specified 

year. 

 

Sec. 6-5-10.   Display of Registration Certificate. 

 

Each registration certificate issued under this Article shall at all times while in force be 

displayed in a conspicuous place in the place of business and shall be removed after expiration 

thereof.   

 

Section 3.  Severability.   

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the 

other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 

application, and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 5.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after adoption.     

94



 

 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of 

Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 9
th

 day of July, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

\HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this ______ day of ___________, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

      By:________________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

95



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPLICATION FOR 2020 BUSINESS REGISTRATION 

and/or ANNUAL RENEWAL 
 

NOTE: Application will be rejected unless all questions are fully answered, and proper remittance is attached. The fee is $__.00 

per year per business. RENEWAL: If NO changes, check box □, fill in licensee and Trade Name sections, sign and date below, 

and return with renewal fee of $__.00  

 
Ownership Information (please print or type): 

Type of Ownership: 

Please indicate by checking the 

appropriate box to the right. 

Individual 

□ 
Partnership 

□ 
Corporation 

□ 
LLC 

□ 
Association/Club 

□ 
Other    

□ 
 

Licensee Information (please print or type): 

Full Legal Name of Licensee  

Trade Name (DBA)  

Physical Address of Business  

City  

State  

Zip Code  

Mailing Address  

City  

State  

Zip Code  

Contact Person  

Title  

Telephone  

Fax  

E-Mail  

Contact Person After Hours 

(include Telephone number) 

 

 
Business Information (please print or type): 

Colorado State Sales Tax Number  

Date you began making sales in Paonia, CO  

Principal product or service rendered in Paonia, CO  

 

Authorized signature  Date: 

Printed Name  

 

214 Grand Avenue • P.O. Box 460 • Paonia, CO 81428-0460  

(970) 527-4101 • Fax (970) 527-4102 

www.TownofPaonia.com 
96



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 24, 2019 
 

 

Employee Health Plan Renewal 

Summary:   

Discussion regarding employee health plan renewal options, deductibles, Town/Staff 

contribution. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

97



98



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 25, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Smith – 215 Delta Avenue – Roof Height Variance 

Summary:   
Property owners of 215 Delta Avenue request approval for a garage roof total height of 20ft. Paonia 
code only permits 15 ft for accessory buildings in the residential zone. 
 

 
Staff:  A roof height of 20’ is not normally allowed within a residential zone.  Staff believes that 
variances should be issued only in extreme and unusual circumstances.  The Planning Board should 
give careful consideration as to whether or not this request rises to those circumstances.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

June 26, 2019 

 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, June 26, 2019, was called to 

order at 6:00 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Chairperson Barbara Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Supported by Commissioner Hunter to approve the agenda. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Unfinished Business 

 

Minutes – May 30, 2019 

 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve minutes as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing: 215 Delta Ave. Variance – Shane Smith  
 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicants 20ft garage Variance request and to 

hear public comments. 
 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Smith’s variance request for a 

garage roof height of 20ft. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes to the planning commission. 

 

Discussion ensued by Mr. Smith stating his reasons for a request for having a 20ft height roof, 

are the addition of solar panels and more storage area. 

 

Mr. Smith’s contractor communicated to the planning committee the mechanics behind having a 

20 ft height roof.    

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart the option of a wider roof. 

 

Mr. Smith expressed that he would like to stay within the character and aesthetics of the house 

and not loose off-street parking, for this to happen the roof would need to be higher and not 

wider.  

111



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Discussion points: 

 

● Loss of off-street parking 

● House would lose the character  

● Roof height explanation 

● A taller garage door needs a higher ceiling 

● A wider roof 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear regarding the contentious of the past request of variances for 

having a higher roof. 

 

Discussion points: 

● Possible denial from the board of trustees 

● contentious matter among the board of trustees and the community 

 

Mayor Stewart read the ordinance of Sec. 16-11-60. - Requirements for accessory buildings and 

uses, (e) Accessory buildings shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.          

 

Administrator Knight stated that the ordinance has been in place since 1983 and was amended in 

2000 and 2015, has not changed and has been the standard since 1983. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear Supported by Mayor Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

denial of Mr. Smith’s 20 ft height garage roof variance. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Public Hearing: 419 Stahl Rd – Greenbelt Addition Annexation 

 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicant's Annexation request and to hear 

public comments. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff comments regarding the Greenbelt Addition Annexation. Stating 

that the property is within the Delta County / Town of Paonia Highway 133 planning area. 

 

Charris Ford, owner of 419 Stahl Rd communicated to the planning committee currently, he does 

not have a water or sewer tap and is requesting to be annexed into to the Town of Paonia to be 

able to have water and sewer tap and to be a part of the community. Mr. Ford disclosed the 

preference of the zoning to be zoned to have the ability of future commercial use.   

 

 

 

Discussion points: 

● Vegetable stand 

● Small future retail business 

● Zoning category 

● Farming Avocation 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear regarding the developing resources for Mr. Ford’s property. 
 

Administrator Knight read Sec. 16-2-110. - DR, Developing Resource District along with Sec. 16-2-20. - 

E-1, Estate Residential District. 

 

Discussion ensued by planning committee members to take into consideration the zoning for the 

surrounding properties, to refrain from spot zoning. Planning Committee members in favor of the 

annexation with appropriate zoning for Mr. Ford’s property according to the use.  

 Discussion point: 
 

● DR, Developing Resource District. 

● E-1, Estate Residential District. 

● Future annexation 

112



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

● Spot Zoning 
 

 

Administrator Knight along with Commissioner Hunter recommended (2) two motion be made 

(1) one for the annexation (2) second for the zoning. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Hunter Supported by Trustee Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval Mr. Charris Ford's annexation. Motion carries unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Hunter called a (5) five-minute recess at 7:05 pm. The meeting resumed at 7:10 pm 

 

Discussion by Commissioner Foguth regarding Mr. Ford’s concern with the type of the property will be 

zoned as. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Foguth to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval to discuss with owner 

and research the zone for his property with the planning committee. Motion failed for lack of a Second. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval to zoning Mr. Charris 

Ford’s property - 419 Stahl rd. as E-1, Estate Residential District. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Chairperson called for a (1) one-minute recess at 7:17. The meeting resumed at 7:18 pm. 

 

 

Public Hearing: Lynn Mattingly Major Subdivision - South Clark 
 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicant's Annexation request and to hear public 

comments. 

 

Commissioner Hunter recused her self due to personal conflict. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff comments regarding the South Clark subdivision. The Development 

Review Committee and Staff reviewed Ms. Lynn Mattingly's major subdivision on South Clark 

application. Recommends the approval of South Clark major subdivision with condition requested and be 

incorporated into the approval that the Paonia Volunteer Fire Department has set, a letter is included in 

the packet. The rights and uses of the irrigation water supply are incorporated into the covenants and 

conditions of the homeowners association.  

 

Ms. Mattingly briefly explained to the planning committee, the property originally is zoned as R-2 it 

accommodates (8) eight residences currently. Requesting to build (7) seven townhomes with a cul-de-sac 

at the end of the street and to be re-zoned as R-1 PUD, to provide affordable housing for the community. 

Parcels will be sold in pairs each one will have its own deed. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the traffic, parking issues and access from Colorado Avenue with South 

Clark subdivision development. 

 

Discussion points: 

 

● Parking for family visiting 

● Possible access through Colorado Avenue 

●  A concern with the back of the Properties facing Colorado Avenue is sloped. 

● Colorado is part town and county 

● Authorization of Colorado Avenue 

● Parking along Colorado avenue 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the request for (4) four variances. The preliminary plat submission - 

variance request are included in the packet.   

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart addressed deems the (4) variances are permissible under zone R-1 

PUD. 

 

 

Administrator Knight communicated the (4) four variances are permissible under the R-1 PUD zone. 

Variances were furnished as (1) one in lieu of applying for (4) separate variance request. 

 

Public comments regarding the South Clark subdivision: 

113



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 4 

 

  

● Fill Colorado Ave to be usable as access for traffic 

● Square feet for developing in an R-2 zone  

● Traffic density 

● Parking 

● Construction 

●  A (50%) fifty percent increase in street traffic 

 

Discussion ensued issues to be analyzed by the board, traffic, parking and water pressure. 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear what requirements will the applicant endure. 

 

Administrator Knight communicated the requirement is to build to the town standards and there are no 

bond requirements on taps. 

 

Motion by Mayor Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval of Lynn Mattingly Major 

Subdivision - South Clark with the condition by staff with some proposal of mitigation on traffic and 

parking issues Second by Commissioners Foguth. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

Adjournment 
 

 

 

Motion by Chairperson Heck supported by Trustee Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 8:33 pm 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  
 

 

 

114



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 25, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

South Clark Avenue Subdivision  

Summary:   
Property owners of TBD Clark Avenue parcels request a major subdivision approval recommendation 
for the development of residential lots on the south end of Clark Avenue. 
 

 
Staff:  Staff and the Development Review Committee has reviewed the application for the major 
subdivision on Clark Avenue and Colorado Avenue.  Staff recommends approval with the following 
conditions: 

All conditions requested by the Paonia Volunteer Fire Department be incorporated into the 
approval; 
The rights and uses of the irrigation water supply be incorporated into the covenants and 
conditions of the home owner’s association. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

June 26, 2019 

 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, June 26, 2019, was called to 

order at 6:00 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Chairperson Barbara Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Supported by Commissioner Hunter to approve the agenda. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Unfinished Business 

 

Minutes – May 30, 2019 

 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve minutes as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing: 215 Delta Ave. Variance – Shane Smith  
 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicants 20ft garage Variance request and to 

hear public comments. 
 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Smith’s variance request for a 

garage roof height of 20ft. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes to the planning commission. 

 

Discussion ensued by Mr. Smith stating his reasons for a request for having a 20ft height roof, 

are the addition of solar panels and more storage area. 

 

Mr. Smith’s contractor communicated to the planning committee the mechanics behind having a 

20 ft height roof.    

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart the option of a wider roof. 

 

Mr. Smith expressed that he would like to stay within the character and aesthetics of the house 

and not loose off-street parking, for this to happen the roof would need to be higher and not 

wider.  

137



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Discussion points: 

 

● Loss of off-street parking 

● House would lose the character  

● Roof height explanation 

● A taller garage door needs a higher ceiling 

● A wider roof 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear regarding the contentious of the past request of variances for 

having a higher roof. 

 

Discussion points: 

● Possible denial from the board of trustees 

● contentious matter among the board of trustees and the community 

 

Mayor Stewart read the ordinance of Sec. 16-11-60. - Requirements for accessory buildings and 

uses, (e) Accessory buildings shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.          

 

Administrator Knight stated that the ordinance has been in place since 1983 and was amended in 

2000 and 2015, has not changed and has been the standard since 1983. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear Supported by Mayor Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

denial of Mr. Smith’s 20 ft height garage roof variance. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Public Hearing: 419 Stahl Rd – Greenbelt Addition Annexation 

 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicant's Annexation request and to hear 

public comments. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff comments regarding the Greenbelt Addition Annexation. Stating 

that the property is within the Delta County / Town of Paonia Highway 133 planning area. 

 

Charris Ford, owner of 419 Stahl Rd communicated to the planning committee currently, he does 

not have a water or sewer tap and is requesting to be annexed into to the Town of Paonia to be 

able to have water and sewer tap and to be a part of the community. Mr. Ford disclosed the 

preference of the zoning to be zoned to have the ability of future commercial use.   

 

 

 

Discussion points: 

● Vegetable stand 

● Small future retail business 

● Zoning category 

● Farming Avocation 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear regarding the developing resources for Mr. Ford’s property. 
 

Administrator Knight read Sec. 16-2-110. - DR, Developing Resource District along with Sec. 16-2-20. - 

E-1, Estate Residential District. 

 

Discussion ensued by planning committee members to take into consideration the zoning for the 

surrounding properties, to refrain from spot zoning. Planning Committee members in favor of the 

annexation with appropriate zoning for Mr. Ford’s property according to the use.  

 Discussion point: 
 

● DR, Developing Resource District. 

● E-1, Estate Residential District. 

● Future annexation 

138



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

● Spot Zoning 
 

 

Administrator Knight along with Commissioner Hunter recommended (2) two motion be made 

(1) one for the annexation (2) second for the zoning. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Hunter Supported by Trustee Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval Mr. Charris Ford's annexation. Motion carries unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Hunter called a (5) five-minute recess at 7:05 pm. The meeting resumed at 7:10 pm 

 

Discussion by Commissioner Foguth regarding Mr. Ford’s concern with the type of the property will be 

zoned as. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Foguth to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval to discuss with owner 

and research the zone for his property with the planning committee. Motion failed for lack of a Second. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval to zoning Mr. Charris 

Ford’s property - 419 Stahl rd. as E-1, Estate Residential District. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Chairperson called for a (1) one-minute recess at 7:17. The meeting resumed at 7:18 pm. 

 

 

Public Hearing: Lynn Mattingly Major Subdivision - South Clark 
 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to hear the applicant's Annexation request and to hear public 

comments. 

 

Commissioner Hunter recused her self due to personal conflict. 

 

Administrator Knight read staff comments regarding the South Clark subdivision. The Development 

Review Committee and Staff reviewed Ms. Lynn Mattingly's major subdivision on South Clark 

application. Recommends the approval of South Clark major subdivision with condition requested and be 

incorporated into the approval that the Paonia Volunteer Fire Department has set, a letter is included in 

the packet. The rights and uses of the irrigation water supply are incorporated into the covenants and 

conditions of the homeowners association.  

 

Ms. Mattingly briefly explained to the planning committee, the property originally is zoned as R-2 it 

accommodates (8) eight residences currently. Requesting to build (7) seven townhomes with a cul-de-sac 

at the end of the street and to be re-zoned as R-1 PUD, to provide affordable housing for the community. 

Parcels will be sold in pairs each one will have its own deed. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the traffic, parking issues and access from Colorado Avenue with South 

Clark subdivision development. 

 

Discussion points: 

 

● Parking for family visiting 

● Possible access through Colorado Avenue 

●  A concern with the back of the Properties facing Colorado Avenue is sloped. 

● Colorado is part town and county 

● Authorization of Colorado Avenue 

● Parking along Colorado avenue 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the request for (4) four variances. The preliminary plat submission - 

variance request are included in the packet.   

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart addressed deems the (4) variances are permissible under zone R-1 

PUD. 

 

 

Administrator Knight communicated the (4) four variances are permissible under the R-1 PUD zone. 

Variances were furnished as (1) one in lieu of applying for (4) separate variance request. 

 

Public comments regarding the South Clark subdivision: 

139



 

 
  

MAY 30, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 4 

 

  

● Fill Colorado Ave to be usable as access for traffic 

● Square feet for developing in an R-2 zone  

● Traffic density 

● Parking 

● Construction 

●  A (50%) fifty percent increase in street traffic 

 

Discussion ensued issues to be analyzed by the board, traffic, parking and water pressure. 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear what requirements will the applicant endure. 

 

Administrator Knight communicated the requirement is to build to the town standards and there are no 

bond requirements on taps. 

 

Motion by Mayor Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval of Lynn Mattingly Major 

Subdivision - South Clark with the condition by staff with some proposal of mitigation on traffic and 

parking issues Second by Commissioners Foguth. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

Adjournment 
 

 

 

Motion by Chairperson Heck supported by Trustee Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 8:33 pm 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  
 

 

 

140



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 8, 2019 
 

 

Ordinance 2019- TBD - Home Occupation Process 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

141



 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019__ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, AMENDING CHAPTER 16, ARTICLE 11, 

SECTION 20 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-23-301, the Town has the power regulate buildings and 

other structures for the purposes of promoting health, safety and the general welfare of the 

community; and    

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and 

the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to 

administratively facilitate the process for obtaining a Home Occupation provision of the Town 

Municipal Code.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

 

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support of the 

enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment of Town Code.  

 

Sec. 16-11-20 shall be repealed and amended to the Town Code as follows: 

 

Sec. 16-11-20. - Home occupations. 

 

A home occupation shall be permitted as an accessory use, provided that a home 

occupation permit is granted by the Town and the criteria for home occupations are met. 

  (1)  Permit required. A person desiring to establish a home occupation within 

the Town shall apply as follows: 

 

   (a)   An application shall for home occupation shall be made to the 

Town Administrator, or its designee, in the form provided by the Town and accompanied by 

the appropriate fee as set by Resolution of the Board of Trustees.   

  

142



 

Page 2 of 4 

  (b)   Upon the receipt of a competed application for a home occupation 

permit, the Town Administrator, or its designee, shall notify the applicant within ten (10 days 

that such application is complete.     

 

    (c)   Thereafter the Town Administrator, or its designee, shall notify the 

applicant and set a date of public hearing before the Town Board of Trustees that will allow 

time for publication and notification of adjoining property holders. 

 

   (d)  Upon the setting of a public hearing before the Board of Trustees 

the Town Clerk shall notify the property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the 

applicant's property by certified mail at the applicant's expense. The notification will include 

the nature of the application, a copy of this Article and the time and place of a public hearing.  

 

  (2) Revoke the permit. A home occupation permit may be revoked by the Town 

Administrator if at any time the home occupation fails to meet the criteria listed below. 

 

   (3)  Nontransferability. Home occupation permits are issued to an individual 

for a specific property and use. Permits are not transferable should the property be sold or 

rented to other persons. 

   

    (4)  Criteria for home occupations. A home occupation shall be allowed as a 

permitted accessory use, provided that the following conditions are met: 

 

  (a)  The use must be conducted entirely within a dwelling or accessory 

structure and carried on by the occupants of the dwelling and no more than one (1) non-

occupant employee. 

 

  (b)  The use must be clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the 

dwelling for dwelling purposes and must not change the residential character thereof.  

  

  (c)  The total area used for such purposes may not exceed twenty-five 

percent (25%) of the first-floor area of the user's dwelling unit. 

 

  (d)  There shall be no change in the outside appearance of the building 

or premises or other visible evidence of the conduct of such home occupation, including 

advertising signs or displays or advertising that solicits or directs persons to the address. A 

wall-mounted identification sign of not more than two (2) square feet shall be permitted. 

 

  (e)  There shall not be conducted on the premises the business of selling 

inventory, supplies or products, provided that incidental retail sales may be made in 

connection with other permitted home occupation. 

 

 

143



 

Page 3 of 4 

   (f)  There must be no exterior storage on the premises of material or equipment 

used as a part of the home occupation. 

 

   (g)  No equipment or process shall be used in such home occupation, which 

creates any glare, fumes, odors or other objectionable conditions detectable to the normal 

senses off the lot if the occupation is conducted in a single-family dwelling or outside the 

dwelling unit if conducted in other than a single-family dwelling. 

 

  (h) No traffic shall be generated by such home occupation in greater volumes 

than would normally be expected in a residential neighborhood, and any need for parking 

generated by the conduct of the home occupation shall be met with additional off-street 

parking spaces that are not located in a required yard adjacent to a street. 

 

   (i)  Under no circumstances shall any of the following be considered a home 

occupation: antique shop, barber shop, a beauty parlor (with more than one [1] chair), clinic, 

mortuary, nursing home, restaurant, veterinarian's clinic or dance studio. 

 

Section 3.  Severability.   

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the 

other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 

application, and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 5.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after adoption.     

 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of 

Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the ___ day of July 2019. 

144



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this ______ day of ___________, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

145



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

Stahl Addition - Acceptance of Annexation Petition 

Summary:   

Board acceptance of the petition annexation provided by Vaquero Paonia Partners, LP for the 

Stahl Addition. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

146



147



148



149



150



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 8, 2019 
 

 

Resolution 2019-11 Initiating Annexation Proceedings – Stahl Rd. 

Summary:   

Colorado Revised Statutes and Paonia Municipal Code require the Board of Trustees to adopt 

a resolution to initiate the annexation proceedings and set the special review hearing.   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

151



 

Res 2019-11-Stahl Addition/Annexation Draft 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-11 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, PURSUANT TO 

C.R.S. 31-12-108, FINDING THE PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF THE 

STAHL ADDITION SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLIES WITH STATUTORY 

REQUIREMENTS AND SETTING THE PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

 

WHEREAS, a Petition for Annexation was filed the 10
th

 of June 2019 with the Town of 

Paonia, Colorado, by the property owner, Vaquero Paonia Partners, LP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Administrator reviewed the documentation; and 

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. 31-12-108, as amended, requires a public hearing and notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees for the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, as follows: 

 

1. The Annexation Petition filed herein substantially complies with the requirements 

of C.R.S. 31-12-107 and 31-12-108. 

2. The Petition is scheduled for a public hearing on the 13
th

 of August 2019 at 6:30 

PM. 

3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published as required by C.R.S. 31-12-108, 

with necessary documents to be sent to the Delta County Board of 

Commissioners, Delta County Attorney, any special district and school district 

having territory within the area proposed to be annexed, pursuant to C.R.S. 31-12-

108(2). 

 

Adopted by the members of the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado this 9
th

 day of July 2019. 

 

    

    TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

 

       

     _______________________________   

     Charles Stewart, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                   

J. Corinne Ferguson Town Clerk 

 

152



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

AARP – Memorandum of Understanding 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

153



  Page 1 of 6 

 

June 27, 2019 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
Grant Agreement 

 
This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“Agreement”) serves as an agreement between AARP, a 
social welfare organization located at 601 E Street, NW, Washington, DC 20049 and Town of Paonia, a 
municipality, located at 214 Grand Avenue, PO Box 460, Paonia, CO 81428 (“Organization”).  Whereas, 
AARP wishes to grant Organization funding for the purposes set forth herein, and Organization wishes to 
perform the grant activities described herein.  Therefore, the parties agree as follows: 
 
AARP Grant Terms and Conditions.  AARP shall provide Organization with grant funding of $10,000.00 
(“Grant Funds”) so that Organization may improve livability by offering a safe gathering place that 
invites all residents, especially older adults, to engage in social and physical activities (“Goal”).   
Organization will perform the activities described herein between July 15, 2019 and November 4, 2019 
(“Grant Period”).  Payment shall be provided according the schedule herein, and subject to the 
following terms and conditions: 

 
a. Grant Fee Schedule.  AARP shall disburse Grant Funds to Organization, according to the 

schedule below.   
 

i. AARP will provide a one-time payment of $10,000.00 
 

b. Scope of Grant and Anticipated Activities to be Funded.  Organization shall use the Grant 
Funds to undertake the following activities and achieve the following deliverables 
(collectively “Grant Activities”): 

i. Organization will perform Grant Activities at Poulos Park, at or near 219 Grand 
Avenue, Paonia, Colorado. 

ii. Organization will work with community members and students to construct a 
Cob Bench/Conversation Circle The benches will include comfortable back 
support and will be position in a shaded area to encourage use and social 
interaction.   

iii. Organization will install Solar LED lighting to increase safety and to illuminate 
the shaded areas of the park for evening use. 

iv. Organization will improve current grass and crushed stone pathways to 
accommodate users with mobility issues and to comply with ADA standards.   

v. Organization will replace steps with ramps.   
vi. Organization will install tables with built- in game boards to encourage all 

generations to engage in social activity. 
vii. In collaboration with the Paonia Creative District, Organization will install 

branded signage at the street entrance to Poulos Park.  Organization will also 
reposition and maintain a historic marker that is currently at the site. 

viii. Organization shall procure and keep in full force and effect, at its sole cost and 
expense, from governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Grant 
activities' location (s), any and all licenses, permits, bonds or other 
authorizations necessary to conduct the Grant activities contemplated under 
this Agreement. Organization will notify AARP immediately if Organization fails 

154



  Page 2 of 6 

 

to obtain the required permits and licenses prior to commencement of the 
Grant activities. A copy of any required permits or licenses shall be provided to 
AARP upon request. 

ix. Organization will include AARP provided and approved branding and language 
that indicates AARP’s support for the Challenge project as applicable: 
1.b.ix.1 Events and Temporary Demonstrations: Signs, banners, or similar 

signage associated with the activity will indicate that the event or 
activity was funded with support from AARP  

1.b.ix.2 Permanent Structures: Structures (benches, wayfinding signs, 
community gardens, tables, seating, shelters, art installations, murals, 
or similar structures) will include a permanent plaque or other sign that 
indicates support from AARP 

1.b.ix.3 Printed, Digital Resources or similar communications: Materials will 
include the AARP logo and mention of support from AARP 

x. Project(s) will be complete by November 4, 2019.  
 

c. Reporting Requirements. Grantee shall submit a financial and programmatic report to AARP 
within thirty (30) days of the expiration of the grant period, detailing all progress or 
achievement of the activities described herein.  The report shall include an itemized listing 
of any and all expenditures and draw-downs of the Grant Funds made during the Grant 
Period. Organization will submit After Action Report with visuals (photos and/or video) to 
AARP national office by December 6, 2019.   
 

d. Documentation and Right to Audit.  Organization shall retain invoices, receipts, accounting 
records and other supporting documentation for at least five (5) years following the 
expiration of the Grant Period.  Organization shall maintain books and records consistent 
with generally accepted accounting principles and good business practices.  AARP retains 
the right to audit Organization’s books and records upon reasonable notice, for the limited 
purpose of confirming that funds are expended and drawn down solely to conduct Grant 
Activities and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
2. Permissible Use of Funds, Repayments, and Refunds.  Organization shall use the Grant Funds 

exclusively for the performance of Grant Activities.  AARP retains the right to receive an immediate 
refund of all improperly expended or unearned funds, as determined in AARP’s sole reasonable 
discretion, from Organization upon written demand.  If Organization anticipates a change in the 
scope or direction of Grant Activities, it must procure prior written approval from AARP before 
expending Grant Funds for any activity not specifically detailed herein.  Furthermore, upon the 
expiration of the Grant Period or if Organization fails to comply with any term of this Agreement, 
Organization agrees to return any unexpended portion of the Grant Funds in Organization’s 
possession upon written demand from AARP.   
 

3. Term and Termination.  The effective date of this agreement shall be the date of execution, and the 
Agreement shall automatically terminate on December 6, 2019.  The Agreement may be terminated 
by AARP at any time and for any reason upon written notification to Organization.  Upon such 
termination, Organization shall not be required to return any portion of the paid Grant Funds to 
AARP, and AARP shall have no further obligation to provide Organization with any unpaid portion of 
the Grant Funds. 
 

155



  Page 3 of 6 

 

4. No Implied Agency.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any partnership, joint 
venture, joint enterprise, or agency relationship among the parties, and no party shall have the right 
to enter into contracts on behalf of, to legally bind, to incur debt on behalf of, or to otherwise incur 
any liability or obligation on behalf of, the other party hereto, in the absence of a separate writing, 
executed by an authorized representative of the other party.  Each party shall be solely responsible 
for its employees and contractors used to provide the Agreement.  

 

5. No commercial or political activity.  Both parties recognize that AARP is a non-profit, non-partisan 
tax-exempt organization and agree that the Grant Funds will not be used to support or oppose 
political candidates or initiatives.  Notwithstanding any specific deliverable herein, Grant Funds shall 
not be used to promote any commercial product or for-profit corporation.   
 

6. Indemnification.  Each Party (an “Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 
the other Party, its affiliates, and their respective partners, officers, directors, employees, 
contractors, agents and representatives (each of whom is an "Indemnified Party") against all 
liability, costs, actions, suits, judgments, damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and court costs) arising out of or resulting from (a) the negligent, reckless or willful acts or 
omissions of Indemnifying Party, its officers, directors, employees, members, independent 
contractors, or agents, (b) Indemnifying Party’s breach of this MOU, including failure to provide the 
services and work as set forth in this MOU; and (c) any claim that the services or work product of 
the Indemnifying Party provided under this MOU infringe or violate the intellectual property or 
other rights of third parties, except to the extent caused by the Indemnified Party.  The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the indemnity specified herein will include, without limitation, 
indemnification for settlements or compromises of matters covered by this indemnity.  The 
Indemnifying Party shall not settle any such suit or claim without the Indemnified Party's prior 
written consent if such settlement would be adverse to the Indemnified Party’s interest.  The 
Indemnified Party may, at its option, conduct the defense in any third party action arising as 
described above and the Indemnifying Party agrees fully to cooperate with such defense.  The 
obligations and rights granted in this Section 6 shall survive the expiration and termination of the 
Agreement. 
 

7. Insurance.  Both parties agree to carry and maintain comprehensive general liability and 
professional liability in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) and workers’ 
compensation insurance in an amount as required by applicable law covering all personnel engaged 
in the furnishing of services under this Agreement for the duration of the Grant Period. 

 
8. Acknowledgment and Trademark Licenses.  Organization shall acknowledge AARP in any press 

release, public announcement, or publicly-released documents related to the Grant Activities 
detailed herein.  To that end, AARP grants Organization a royalty-free non-exclusive, revocable 
license to use its name and corporate logo solely for that purpose upon the advance written 
approval of AARP in each instance.  In addition, Organization grants AARP a non-exclusive, royalty-
free, world-wide, license to use Organization’s corporate trademark, including its name and/or logo 
for the limited purpose of communications regarding the grant between AARP and Organization to 
AARP members, the 50+ and the general public in promotion of AARP in all media and mediums, 
including without limitations, broadcast, print, online and AARP membership materials until the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement.  All trademark licenses granted under this section are 

156



  Page 4 of 6 

 

non-transferrable and shall automatically terminate at the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

 
9. Publicity.  Notwithstanding any specific deliverable herein, neither party may issue a press release, 

hold a press conference, or otherwise refer to the other party in any manner with respect to this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of such other party.  
 

10. Warranties.  Each Party hereby represents and warrants that:  (a) it has full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder; (b) it is duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its origin; (c) it has not entered 
into, and during the Term will not enter into, any agreement that would prevent it from complying 
with this Agreement; (d) it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations in its performance of 
this Agreement; and (e) the content, media and other materials used or provided as part of the 
Agreement shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations and shall not infringe or otherwise 
violate the intellectual property rights, rights of publicity or other proprietary rights of any third 
party.  If necessary, Organization shall enter into written agreements and obtain written releases 
from third parties, in order to ensure that any work product can be used by AARP as contemplated 
herein. 
 

11. Confidentiality and Privacy.  Both parties agree to take commercially reasonable measures to 
protect information obtained from the other, provided information is marked “confidential” or is of 
such a nature that the recipient party has reason to believe it is confidential.  Organization shall not 
rent, sell, lease, distribute, or otherwise knowingly make available to any third party any 
information obtained from AARP about AARP, AARP members, or any AARP activity, unless (i) prior 
written authorization has been obtained; or (ii) Organization is required to release information by 
valid subpoena or court order.  This section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

 

12. Additional Terms.  Organization shall not assign or otherwise transfer the Agreement, including by 
change of control, to any party without the prior written consent of AARP.  This Agreement 
represents the entire agreement between Parties and replaces any prior agreement or proposed 
variation.  Should there be any conflict between any forms or documents exchanged by the Parties, 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern.  This Agreement shall be amended only by 
mutual written agreement executed by all Parties or their respective designees.  The Parties agree 
that this Agreement will be governed by the Laws of the District of Columbia without regard to 
District of Columbia conflict of laws statutes/rules.  If any portion of this Agreement shall be 
declared illegal, void or otherwise unenforceable, the remaining provisions will not be affected, but 
will remain in full force and effect.   

 
13. Notice.  For purposes of this Agreement, the following individuals shall serve as points of contact, 

including delivery of reports, for both AARP and the Organization: 
 

AARP      Town of Paonia 
Jean Setzfand     Ken Knight 
SVP, Programs     Town Administrator 
601 E Street, NW, WDC 20049   Town of Paonia 

157



  Page 5 of 6 

 

214 Grand Avenue, PO Box 460, Paonia, CO 
81428  

       kdknight@townofpaonia.com 
 

158



  Page 6 of 6 

 

AND AGREED TO BY:  
 

AARP 

 

 

By: ___________________________  

 

Printed Name: Jean Setzfand 

 

Title: Senior Vice President, Programs 

 

Date: _______________________  

  

Town of Paonia  

 

 

By: ___________________________  

 

Printed Name: __________________  

 

Title: __________________________  

 

Date: ________________________  

 

159



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

CHC – Colorado Oil & Gas Conservation Commission - Rulemaking 

Summary:   

See agenda request form submitted. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

160



DRAFT COGCC Proposed Rulemaking Calendar

Rev. 6/17.2019

TASK TITLE

Rulemaking MAY
2019

JUNE
2019

JULY
2019

AUG
2019

SEPT
2019

OCT
2019

NOV
2019

DEC
2019

JAN
2020

FEB
2020

MAR
2020

APRIL
2020

MAY
2020

JUNE
2020

JULY
2020

AUG
2020

SEPT
2020

OCT
2020

1 500 Series
June 17, 

2019 
Hearing 

2 Alternative Site Analysis
(CDPs)

November 20-21, 
2019 Hearing 

(tentative)

3 Local
Government Provisions

November 20-21, 
2019 Hearing 

(tentative)

4 Technical Review Board
November 20-21, 

2019 Hearing 
(tentative)

5 Cumulative Impacts
(CDPs)

March 25-26, 
2020 Hearing 

(tentative)

6 PHSWE
(CDPs)

April 22-23, 
2020 Hearing 

(tentative)

7 Flowlines (inactive wells 
etc.)

February 26-27, 
2020 Hearing 

(tentative)

8 Application Fees

Hearing between 
August 31 - 

September 10, 2020 
(tentative)

9  Financial Assurance

Hearing 
between July 1-

11, 2020 
(tentative)

10  Wellbore Integrity
January 29-30, 
2020 Hearing 

(tentative)

11 Worker Certification September 16, 2020 
Hearing (tentative)

12 Wildlife TBD

13 Incorporate CDPHE rules 
as needed TBD

PHASE I PHASE II PHASE III

161



	

	

	
	
	
	
	 	
	

 
 
 
July 2, 2019 
 
Board of Trustees for the Town of Paonia 
P.O. Box 460 
214 Grand Avenue 
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
Re: Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission Rulemakings 
 
Dear Trustees for the Town of Paonia, 
 
In April 2019, Governor Polis sign SB 181 into law. This law is a sea change for the State 
of Colorado and the Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). At its 
most fundamental level, it changes the mission of the COGCC from fostering oil and gas 
development to regulating oil and gas development. The law goes further. It mandates 
that the COGCC prioritize public health, safety, and welfare, the environment, and 
wildlife resources, and explicitly grants local jurisdictions the authority to regulate 
certain aspects of oil and gas activity. 
 
To achieve that prioritization, and to implement the new mission, SB 181 directed the 
COGCC (and the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment) to kick off a 
series of sweeping rulemaking efforts. These rulemakings will essentially result in the 
incremental overhaul of the entire COGCC rulebook. 
 
What Rules Are Being Amended? 
By the end of 2020, virtually every COGCC rule will have undergone some level of 
amendment. Attachment A to this letter is a draft schedule of the rulemakings from the 
COGCC. They will address 13 specific issues: 500 Series – Administrative Law Judges, 
alternative site analysis, local government provisions, a technical review board, 
cumulative impacts, defining “public health, safety, welfare, the environment, and 
wildlife (PHSWE), flowlines, application fees, financial assurances, wellbore integrity, 
worker certification, wildlife, and incorporating CDPHE rules as needed. In addition to 
these 13 categories, the COGCC has proposed an additional topic to implement the 
Agency’s mission change, making 14 categories total. The Director of the COGCC 
intends to complete all 14 of these rulemakings before the end of 2020. 

162



	

 
What Does This Mean For Paonia? 
A lot. The Town’s jurisdiction largely ends at its borders, but the oil and gas operations 
that impact the town are high in the watershed. SB 181 outlines a general intention to 
protect public health, safety, welfare, the environment, and wildlife resources. These 
rulemakings are how that will be achieved. SB 181 also describes an intention to 
empower local governments. The bill clearly grants local governments certain powers 
within their bounds, but it also clearly intends to grant other impacted jurisdictions 
more say in the application process. Several of these specific rulemakings will help 
define the rule of local governments in that regard. Specifically, the mission statement, 
Local Government Provisions, definitions, wildlife, and the CDPHE Rulemakings will 
all have significant impacts on the Town and its authority.  
 
How Can The Town Engage? 
Like the RMP, there are several avenues for the Town to possibly engage in the 
rulemakings, either as an official party, with a 510 statement, or with public testimony 
at the start of the hearing.  
 
Party Status: Becoming a party to a rulemaking is the most effective, but most time-
consuming option. Stakeholder Party Status is an individual or group that has a stake or 
interest in the rule at hand. Party status in a stakeholder process or Rulemaking process 
means that you receive the statements, comments, and recommendations filed by all of 
the other parties involved. It also means that you will have the opportunity to provide 
your own feedback, statements, testimony and information regarding what you should 
believe should be in the rules being considered. It also guarantees that you will be 
allotted some amount of time during the hearing to present your arguments.  
 
Party status does not create an obligation to do any of the above, and while it sounds 
like a highly legal process, you do not have to be represented by an attorney. Your 
participation as a party can include anything from drafting your own detailed 
statements and presenting testimony and questioning witnesses to simply concurring 
with other parties. Your time at a hearing can be used or allocated to a different group, 
at your discretion. In the one rulemaking hearing that has taken place so far, 
participation by various parties has varied greatly.  
 
510 Statements and public testimony: Anyone who is NOT a party to the proceeding 
may submit a 510 statement or make public testimony at a rulemaking hearing. 510 
statements are so-called because they are allowed under COGCC Rule 510. 510 
Statements may be submitted in advance, but makers of such statements are not entitled 
to the same notice or service as formal parties. Likewise, every rulemaking hearing 
begins with time for public statements. These statements are generally very brief, and 
members of the public are not entitled to present witnesses or respond to the statements 
of parties.  
 

163



	

What’s Next? 
The draft schedule for the SB 181 mandated rulemakings has been attached here, but it 
is very much a draft. COGCC Director Robbins is holding a meeting in Thornton on 
July 18th to provide more information about the timeline and the COGCC’s next steps. 
As of right now, no stakeholder processes or rulemaking have been formally engaged 
for any of the proposed subjects, so we must wait until that process begins. For now, we 
encourage you to review the draft schedule, and to begin considering which subjects 
would be the highest priorities for engagement.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson 

164



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 3, 2019 
 

 

CHC – Bureau of Land Management – Revised Master Plan 

Summary:   

See agenda request form submitted. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

165



Final	Proposed	Resource	Management	Plan	
Bureau	of	Land	Management,	Uncompahgre	Field	Office	

Factsheet	
	
What	is	a	Resource	Management	Plan?	
• The	Resource	Management	Plan	(RMP)	guides	the	BLM’s	decision	making	on	all	
resources	under	their	jurisdiction.	This	includes	everything	from	grazing	to	recreation,	
to	hard	rock	minerals,	and	(most	importantly	for	us)	oil	and	gas.	The	Final	RMP	will	
guide	oil	and	gas	leasing	in	the	Field	Office	for	the	next	20-30	years.		

• The	Draft	RMP	was	released	by	the	BLM	for	public	comment	on	June	3,	2016.	The	BLM	
received	53,000	total	comments,	42,000	of	which	requested	the	BLM	consider	a	“No-
Leasing”	Alternative.		

• This	Proposed	RMP	and	Final	Environmental	Impact	Statement	did	not	consider	that	
“No-Leasing”	alternative,	nor	did	it	consider	many	of	the	issues	raised	by	the	public.	CHC	
and	our	friends	are	putting	together	a	complete	list	of	issues	the	BLM	failed	to	address.	

• This	Proposed	RMP	developed	a	5th	alternative,	not	previously	available	for	public	
comment,	and	represents	the	most	development-friendly	alternative	of	those	proposed	
in	the	Final	EIS,	opening	95%	of	the	available	acreage	to	unfettered	oil	and	gas	leasing.	

	
Uncompahgre	Field	Office	Statistics	(in	
acres):	
o Total	Surface	Acreage	–	3,096,780	
o Surface	Administration:	
§ US	Forest	Service	–	1,248,390	
§ Private	Ownership	–	1,125,350	
§ BLM	–	675,800	
§ National	Park	Service	–	27,130	
§ State	of	Colorado	–	20,110		

o Federally	owned	subsurface	
minerals:	971,220	

Acres	Open	to	Oil	and	Gas	Leasing	in	
Each	Alternative:	

o Alternative	A	–	871,810	(95%)	
o Alternative	B1	–	609,360	(67%)	
o Alternative	C	–	871,810	(95%)	
o Alternative	D	(BLM	Draft	EIS		

Preferred)	–	867,970	(94%)	
o Alternative	E	–FEIS	Proposed	RMP	

–	871,810	(95%)	

	

	
Issues	with	this	RMP:	Not	only	does	this	RMP	open	up	95%	of	the	planning	area	to	oil	and	
gas	leasing	it	guts	any	semblance	of	public	lands	protections:	

o Removes	virtually	all	ecological	emphasis	areas.	
o Removes	proposed	management	direction	for	energy	development	in	or	near	raptor	

or	other	special	status	species	habitat.	

166



	

o Significantly	weakens	protections	within	existing	Areas	of	Critical	Environmental	
Concern	(ACECs),	and	eliminates	or	denies	12	existing	or	proposed	ACECs		

o May	affect	(with	potential	for	“adversely	affect”)	numerous	threatened	and	
endangered	species,	including	Gunnison	sage-grouse.	

Next	Steps	
The	final	phase	of	the	environmental	review	process	for	this	RMP	is	a	formal	protest	
period.	Federal	law	mandates	a	30-day	public	protest	period,	and	a	60-day	governor’s	
consistency	review.		
	
Protest	

o The	protest	period	started	June	28,	and	will	end	July	29,	2019.		
o Participation	in	the	protest	process	is	tightly	regulated.	According	to	federal	rules:	

o Only	those	who	have	previously	participated	in	the	planning	process,	and	
have	an	interest	that	may	be	harmed	by	the	proposed	RMP	may	protest.	This	
means	that	in	order	to	protest,	you	must	have	submitted	a	comment	in	some	
form	in	some	other	phase	of	this	process.	Any	protest	by	someone	who	has	
not	previously	engaged	will	be	dismissed	out	of	hand	by	the	Agency.	

o The	protest	must	be	in	writing,	or	submitted	through	the	BLM’s	ePlanning	
page,	and	contain:	

§ Name,	mailing	address,	telephone,	and	interest	of	person	filing	the	
protest	

§ A	statement	of	the	issues	being	protested,	
§ A	statement	of	parts	of	the	plan	being	protested,		
§ A	copy	of	all	documents	addressing	those	issues	and	parts	submitted	

during	the	planning	process,	and	
§ A	concise	state	explaining	why	the	decision	of	the	State	Director	is	

wrong.	
o Only	issues	previously	discussed	in	the	planning	process	may	be	the	subject	

of	a	protest.	You	cannot	raise	wholly	new	issues	in	a	protest.	
o CHC	is	working	with	our	partner	organizations	to	determine	the	best	way	for	

anyone	who	is	either	uncertain	if	they	previously	commented,	or	knows	they	have	
not	participated,	to	engage	in	this	protest	period.	

	
Governor’s	Consistency	Review	
This	tool	allows	the	governor	to	review	the	proposed	RMP	for	consistency	with	existing	
state	policies	and	programs.	This	proposed	RMP	is	obviously	at	odds	with	both	SB	181,	the	
oil	and	gas	reform	bill,	and	HB	1261,	the	greenhouse	gas	emissions	reductions	bill,	among	
several	other	policies.	
	
	
	

167



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

July 2, 2019 
 

 

Thomas Markle – Proposed Ordinance: Amend Zoning to Account for 

Formula Business 

Summary:   

 

Community member request to discuss “formula business” defined as: “businesses that adopt 
standardized services, methods of operation, decor, uniforms, architecture, or other features virtually 
identical to businesses elsewhere.” https://thenewlocalization.com 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

168



 

Formula Businesses in Paonia 
 
Paonia is an entirely unique place. It may share aspects with other towns, but I have traveled 
the United States extensively and I have seen no combination of traditionally scaled agriculture, 
arts, food, friendship, music, generous and gregarious people all set in a backdrop of matchless 
beauty providing adventure and exercise.  
 
I believe that the uniqueness of character in Paonia is its primary economic and aesthetic asset. 

 
In order to retain that valuable asset I propose an amendment to the zoning ordinance to 
include language that protects the unique character of the Town of Paonia.  
 
Here is a map of all the places I’ve lived or visited enough to know the street layout: 

 
Can you tell which picture goes with which place?  

 

169



 

 
 

 
(answers at the bottom)  
 
Background 
Based on information from the Paonia Message Board, I met with the town administrator on 
Tuesday the 2nd when he informed me that a parcel on Samuel Wade had been sold to a strip 
mall developer. The legal term for a chain store, franchise, etc. is a “Formula Business”. These 
are businesses that, essentially, can be found elsewhere and are copied in appearance, service, 
product, and/or operations.  
 
This article  describes the decreased tax value of formula business  vs. mixed-use areas like we 
have now on Grand Ave. 
This article  describes some of the problems associated with formula retail centers. 
This  is an article describing some of the impacts a formula business can have on a community.  
 
In short, a formula business detracts from the beauty and character of the town, it drains money 
from the local economy, it reduces the interest of visitors to town, it generates less sales tax per 
unit area, and it risks the destruction of other existing and future local businesses.  
 
This is not a new problem and other communities have taken action to protect the unique 
character of their towns through local ordinances. The Institute for Local Self Reliance provides 
introductory information regarding formula businesses ordinances dating back to 2008 in  this 
article.  
 
It is important to note that the language does not place restrictions on a particular class of 
services, rather it prevents duplication of businesses that can be found elsewhere.  
 
 
 

170



 

 
Here are some examples of municipal codes that restrict formula businesses 

York, ME  (PDF, pg 39) 
Bristol, RI  
Excelsior, MN 
Crested Butte, CO  (PDF) 
Fredricksburg, TX 
Chesapeak City, MD  (PDF) 
McCall, ID  (3.4.02) 
Port Townsend, WA  - exemptions for certain business types 
 

Here are examples Specifically Addressing ‘dollar stores’ 
Tulsa, Okla . — Adopted a dollar store dispersal policy in 2018. 
Mesquite, Texas  — Adopted a dollar store restriction policy that makes dollar stores a 
“conditional use” and imposes a dispersal standard in 2018. 
Kansas City, Kans.  — Adopted an updated dollar store dispersal policy in 2019. 
Oklahoma City, Okla.  — Enacted a moratorium on new dollar store development in 
2019, while the city considers other dollar store restrictions. 
New Orleans, La . — Completed a study of dollar store impacts in 2018, which 
recommended further policy actions the city could take to address these impacts. 
 
 

  
There are risks involved with placing such ordinances; I have found three lawsuits filed against 
municipalities:  
Coronado, CA  was challenged in court by property owners, the court decided in favor of the 
town, as it was decided the language was prohibiting standardized features rather than certain 
ownership. 
Islamorada, FL  was similarly challenged and lost because it was designed to protect particular 
existing businesses. 
Jersey City, NJ  is currently being sued to remove their ordinance under the charge that they 
have selectively enforced it. 
 
Here are some articles regarding the legality of the issue: 
https://ilsr.org/wp-content/uploads/2008/12/Legal-Guide-to-Formula-Business-Ordinances_89_D
AS-and-JY-NY-Zoning-Law-and-Practice-Report-big-box-regulation_clear.pdf  (references 
Colorado municipalities) 
https://scholarlycommons.law.case.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1787&context=caselrev 
 
Summary of Proposal 
I propose that the board amend the zoning ordinance to include definitions for formula 
businesses, prohibit them expressly from C1 and permit them with special review in C2, I1, and 
I2.  

171



 

Proposed Ordinance: 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-05  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE  
 
RECITALS:  
WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is a 
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-23-301, the Town has the power to regulate buildings and other 
structures for the purposes of promoting health, safety and the general welfare of the community; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-20-104(1)(g), the Town has the power to regulate the use of 
land on the basis of the impact thereof on the community or surrounding areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and the 
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to add this 
provision to the Municipal Code.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 
PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Legislative Findings. The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board 
of Trustees in support of the enactment of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of town Code Sec. 16-1-100 shall be amended to the Town code as follows: 
 
Formula business  means a business which is required by contractual or other arrangement to 
maintain one or more of the following items: standardized ("formula") array of services and/or 
merchandise, trademark, logo, service mark, symbol, decor, architecture, layout, uniform, or similar 
standardized features and which causes it to be substantially identical to more than five other 
businesses regardless of ownership or location. Formula businesses can include, but are not limited 
to: restaurants, retail stores, banks, real estate sales offices, spas, hair and nail salons, and 
hotel/motel/inn/B&B. 
 
Section 3. Amendment of Town Code. Sec. 16-3-70 shall be amended to the Town Code as follows:  
 

USE C-1 C-2 I-1 I-2 

Formula Business X S S S 

 
 
 

172



 

Section 4. Severability. If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 
the other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  
 
Section 5. Repeal of Prior Ordinances. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
Section 6. Ordinance Effect. Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters 
as embraced in this Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of 
ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, 
that the repeal of any ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section 
of any ordinance or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this 
repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  
 
Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
Photos: Beverly Hills, FL; Chicago, IL; Bowling Green, KY; Floyds Knobs, IN; Oak Ridge North, TX; 

 
 

173



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

174



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

175



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

176



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

177



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

178



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

June 5, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

179


	Top
	1. 7-9 Work Session - Short-Term Rentals
	ASF - Work Session
	WORK SESSION - Short Term Rental Worksession Presentation
	WORK Session - A Guide to Smart AirBnB Regulation for Local Governments

	5. ASF 7 -Administrator.docx
	ASF 7 -Administrator

	6. ASF 8 -Public Works
	ASF 8 -Public Works
	Public Works - Hand Railing Estimate_Redacted

	7. ASF 9 -Police Report
	ASF 9 -Police Report
	Blotter

	8. ASF 10 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 10 -Treasurer&#39;s Report

	9. ASF 11 - Disbursements
	ASF 11 - Disbursements
	Disbursements_Redacted

	10. 7-9 Business Registration Ordinance
	ASF - Business Registration
	Clerk Notes_Business Registry
	Ordinance 2019- TBD -  Business Registry
	Business License Application

	11. BOT - Employee Health Plan Renewal
	ASF - Healthplan
	Update Health Plan Spreadsheet

	12. BOT - Smith Variance Packet_Redacted
	ASF - Smith Variance
	Smith Variance Packet_Redacted
	06-26-19 Planning min Draft-SMITH

	13. BOT - S. Clark Avenue Subdivision
	ASF - S. Clark Avenue Subdivision
	South Clark Avenue Packet_Redacted
	06-26-19 Planning min Draft-MATTINGLY

	14. 7-9 Home Occupation Application Process
	ASF - Home Occupation Ordinance
	Ordinance 2019-TBD- Amending Home Occupations

	15. Stahl Addition - Acceptance of Annexation Petition
	ASF - Stahl Addition Petition
	Stahl addition - Petition for Annexation
	19005 STAHL Re-Plat Rev 05-22-19

	16. BOT - Resolution 2019-11 Initiating Annexation Proceedings
	ASF - Resolution 2019-11 Stahl
	2019-11 Initiating Annexation Proceedings - Stahl

	17. AARP - Memorandum of Understanding
	ASF - AARP-MOU
	AARP Community Challenge - COTownofPaoniaMOU

	20. Thomas Markle - Amend Zoning
	ASF - Thomas Markle
	Thomas Markle - Formula Business Restrictions

	21. ASF 12 - F&P
	ASF 12 -F&amp;P

	22. ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities
	ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities

	23. ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS
	ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS

	24. ASF 15 -S2C
	ASF 15 -S2C

	25. ASF 16 -Tree Board
	ASF 16 -Tree Board

	Bottom

